
Town of Weaverville
Planning Board

Regular Monthly Meeting
Tuesday, January 3, 2023, 6:00pm

Remote Access Option for General Public via Zoom:
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/89273366843; Meeting ID: 892 7336 6843

See page 2 for additional information on the remote access option.

Agenda

1. Call to Order – Chair Bob Pace
2. Approval of the Agenda
3. Approval of the Minutes

December 6, 2022 regular meeting of the Board
4. 171 Monticello Road Conditional District Application and Supporting Documents

Discussion related to the reasonableness of the zoning request and consistency with the
Comprehensive Land Use Plan
Consideration of a motion establishing a recommendation to Town Council on the
proposed conditional district

5. 480 Reems Creek Road Zoning Map Amendment Application
Discussion related to the reasonableness of the zoning request and consistency with the
Comprehensive Land Use Plan
Consideration of a motion establishing a recommendation to Town Council on the
proposed zoning map amendment

6. Any Other Business
7. Adjournment

Page 1 of 32



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
WEAVERVILLE PLANNING BOARD REGULAR MEETING – JANUARY 3, 2023, AT 

6PM REMOTE ELECTRONIC MEETING LOGIN CREDENTIALS 
 

This NOTICE OF REMOTE ELECTRONIC MEETING is provided to inform the public that the 

Weaverville Planning Board regular monthly meeting on Tuesday, January 3, 2023, 
at 6:00p.m. will be held as an in-person meeting (Council Chambers/Community 
Room at Town Hall, 30 South Main Street) with remote attendance by the general 
public via Zoom. 

For those members of the public wishing to attend remotely via Zoom the following 
information is provided: 

To join the meeting by computer, go to this link 
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/89273366843 . You may be asked for permission to access 
your computer’s video and audio. If so, click “allow.” You will then be asked for the 
Meeting ID which is: 892 7336 6843. You will first enter a virtual waiting room. The 
host will admit you into the meeting just prior to the start of the meeting. 

To join the meeting by phone, call: (253) 215-8782 or (301)715 8592 

You will then be asked for the Meeting ID which is: 892 7336 6843. There is no 
password for this meeting, so if asked for one just press the # button. 

The Planning Board is not scheduled to take public comment at this meeting. 

For questions or additional assistance in how to participate in this meeting, please contact 
Planning Director and Town Clerk James Eller at 828-484-7002 or 
jeller@weavervillenc.org . 

 

Bob Pace, Chairman 
12/29/2023 

 

Page 2 of 32



TOWN OF WEAVERVILLE

PLANNING BOARD AGENDA ITEM

Date of Meeting: Tuesday, January 3, 2023 

Subject: Minutes

Presenter:   Planning Director

Attachments: Minutes from the December 6, 2022 Meeting of the Board

Description:

Attached you will find proposed minutes from the December 6, 2022 meeting of the Board

Action Requested:

Staff is requesting that the Planning Board adopt the aforementioned minutes as 
presented or amended by motion of the Board.

Page 3 of 32



  
Page 1 of 2  December 6, 2022 
  Planning and Zoning Board Minutes 
 

 

Town of Weaverville 
Planning Board 

Minutes – Tuesday, December 6, 2022 
 

 
The Planning Board of the Town of Weaverville met for a regularly scheduled monthly meeting at 6:00pm on 
Tuesday, December 6, 2022 within Council Chambers at Town Hall. 

Present: Board Members Bob Pace, Mark Endries, Jane Kelley, and Donna Mann Belt and Alternate Members 
Maggie Schroder and Ryan Gagliardi, Town Council Liaison Michele Wood, Town Attorney Jennifer Jackson 
and Planning Director James Eller. Board Member Rachael Bronson was absent. 

1. Call to Order 

Mr. Pace called to order at 6:00 pm.   

Mr. Pace recognized Ms. Schroder as a regular member of the Board to fill the absence of a regular member. 

Councilmember Cordell spoke to the Board regarding her time on the Planning Board as both a member and a 
Town Council Liaison. 

2. Approval of the Agenda 

Noting no objections Mr. Pace declared the agenda approved by consent.  

3. Approval of the Minutes from the October 4, 2022 Meeting of the Board 

Ms. Kelley motioned to approve the minutes as presented. Ms. Schroder seconded and all voted unanimously in 
favor of the motion. 

4. 171 Monticello Road Conditional District Application and Supporting Documents 

Mr. Eller presented the application and supporting documents, which included a site plan and statement of 
reasonableness, for the proposed conditional district located at 171 Monticello Road. A staff report providing a 
zoning analysis and opinion on the compliance with the CLUP was also provided.  

Ms. Jackson noted that the initial consideration required of a conditional district was held by Town Council on 
November 21 and described the six proposed conditions proposed by Town Council at that time. Through 
conversation the Board ultimately agreed with the proposed conditions arrived at during the initial consideration 
which included information on the installation of safe pedestrian access to Northridge Commons, maximizing 
buffering, the location of building in relation to neighboring properties, relocation of the pool away from 
neighboring properties, overall density, and number of parking spaces to be provided.  

Related to the provision of on site amenities, it became the consensus of the Board that the number of units 
within individual buildings could be increased to free up additional areas on the property.  
 

 

Page 4 of 32



  
Page 2 of 2  December 6, 2022 
  Planning and Zoning Board Minutes 
 

Chris Byrd, of LDG Development appeared on behalf of the application and answered questions from the Board 
ranging from conditions on the site plan, pedestrian access, LDG communities in other areas, and various factors 
related to affordable housing.  

Related to compliance with the Comprehensive Land Use Plan, Mr. Endries offered the opinion that the project 
was compliant plan with considerations given to the goals of the plan and the property’s location and 
designation on the future land use map. This position was also the consensus of the Board. 

It was also the consensus of the Board to consider the reasonableness of the proposed zoning and proposed 
conditions reflective of Town Council’s initial consideration and the Board’s deliberations at their next meeting.  

5. Nonconforming Lots 

Having spent nearly two hours on the previous agenda item it became the consensus of the Board to address 
nonconforming lots at a later date. 

6. Adoption of the 2023 Schedule of Regular Meetings for the Planning Board 

Mr. Endries motioned to adopt the 2023 schedule of regular meetings as presented. Ms. Schroder seconded and 
all voted in favor of the motion.  

7. Any Other Business 

No further business was presented. 

8. Adjournment. 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

_____________________________ 
Bob Pace, Chair 
Planning and Zoning Board 

ATTEST: 

________________________________ 
James W. Eller 
Planning Director / Town Clerk 
 

Page 5 of 32



TOWN OF WEAVERVILLE

PLANNING BOARD AGENDA ITEM

Date of Meeting: Tuesday, January 3, 2022

Subject: Conditional District Application for 171 Monticello Road

Presenter:   Planning Director, Town Attorney

Attachments: Conditional District Application, Updated Site Plan, Staff 
Report, Statement of Reasonableness, Community Meeting 
Summary, Buncombe County Ord. 78-650, Proposed Statement 
of Reasonableness  

Description:

Town Council has referred the zoning request to the Planning Board for the full review 
process as required by N.C.G.S. Chapter 160D. The Planning Board shall now review and 
offer comment on the proposal as per Sec. 20-1505. During the December meeting it 
became the consensus position of the Board that the project was compliant with the 
comprehensive land use plan leaving the reasonableness to be considered.   

Action Requested:

The Board is being asked to consider the conditional district application and offer a 
recommendation to Town Council on the proposal’s consistency with the comprehensive 
land use plan and reasonableness of the proposed zoning amendment. 

A proposed recommendation from the Planning Board is being provided to the Board for 
it’s consideration. 

Page 6 of 32



CONDITIONAL DISTRICT APPLICATION
Planning and Zoning Department
30 South Main Street, P.O. Box 338, Weaverville, NC 28787
(828) 484-7002--- fax (828) 645-4776 --- jeller@weavervillenc.org
Application Fee Based Upon Size of Property

Conditional Districts address situations in which a particular use, properly planned, may be 
appropriate for a specific site but, the existing zoning district of the site has insufficient standards 
to mitigate the site-specific impact on the surrounding area. Uses which may be considered for a 
Conditional District shall be established on the Table of Uses found at Sec. 20-3205. Additional 
information related to Conditional Districts may be found at Sec. 20-3203. 

At the discretion of the Town Council, it may be required of the property owner to guarantee 
performance or completion of conditions included in the Conditional Zoning Plan. Such guarantee 
may take the form of: (1) a surety performance bond made by a company licensed and authorized 
in  North Carolina, (2) a bond of a developer with an assignment to the Town of a certificate of 
deposit, (3) a bond of developer secured by an official bank check drawn in favor of the Town and 
deposited with the Town Clerk, (4) cash or an irrevocable letter of credit, (5) a bank escrow account 
whereby the developer deposits cash, a note, or a bond with a federally insured financial institution 
into an account payable to the Town. The amount of the guarantee shall be determined by Town 
Council.   

OWNER/APPLICANT NAME:          APPLICATION DATE:       

BRIEFLY DESCRIBE THE PROJECT:       

PHONE NUMBER:            PROPERTY ADDRESS:       

PIN:              DEED BOOK/PAGE:       

LOT AREA (acres):           ZONING DISTRICT:        

___________________________________________       _____  ________________
SIGNATURE OF APPLICANT         DATE  

Application fees are due at the time of submittal. Withdrawal of an application after the public 
hearing has been advertised will result in the forfeiture of the application fee.

LDG Multifamily, LLC 10/17/2022

This project proposes 168 affordable housing units
consisting of 1, 2, and 3 bedroom units as well as a pool and clubhouse.

10.68

973360350300000 1245/0551

171 Monticello Rd
Weaverville, NC 28787

(502) 649-0601

R-3

Page 7 of 32



CONDITIONAL DISTRICT APPLICATION 
Planning and Zoning Department 
30 South Main Street, P.O. Box 338, Weaverville, NC 28787 
(828) 484-7002--- fax (828) 645-4776 --- jeller@weavervillenc.org 
Application Fee Based Upon Size of Property 
 
A petition for a Conditional District must include a site plan and supporting information that 
specifies the intended uses for property. A complete site plan shall be substantially compliant with 
the mapping standards found within Sec. 20-2504. Additional information may be requested by 
members of staff, the Planning Board or Town Council.  
 
 Title block containing: 

 Name of owner & applicant 
 Property address 
 Buncombe County PIN  
 Date or dates survey was conducted or plan prepared 
 Scale of the drawing in feet per inch 
 Deed book and page reference of the deed  
 Zoning designation of property 

 Sketch vicinity map depicting the relationship between the proposed subdivision and the surrounding area 
 North Arrow and orientation 
 Lot area in acres and square feet 
 Existing topography of the site and within 300 feet of the site boundary in five (5) foot contours 
 Delineation of areas within the floodplain. 
 Names of owners of adjoining properties, Buncombe County PIN, and zoning designation 
 Minimum building setback lines applicable to the lot, including drainage or utility easements 
 Proposed number and location of signs 
 Exact dimensions, location, height, and exterior features of proposed buildings and structures 
 Photographs of buildings on properties within 200 ft. of subject property 
 Utility easements 
 Existing and proposed sanitary sewer system layout and a letter of commitment 
 Existing and proposed water distribution system layout and a letter of commitment  
 Plans for individual water supply and sewerage/septic disposal system, if any 
 A statement as to whether or not natural gas, telephone, electric, and cable lines are to be installed, and whether 

they will be above or below ground 
 Exact dimension and location of all traffic, parking, and circulation plans showing the proposed location and 

arrangement of parking spaces.  
 Existing and proposed roads, driveways, ingress/egress, easements, and rights-of-way both private and public.  
 Existing and proposed encroachments into setbacks, rights-of-way, and/or easements, if any 
 Proposed phasing, if any, and expected completion date of the project. 
 
Upon reviewing the application, site plan, and supporting documents, the Planning and Zoning 
Board will issue statement of reasonableness of the proposed Conditional District.  

Before a public hearing may be held by the Town Council, the petitioner must file in the Office of 
the Town Clerk, a written report of at least one community meeting held by the petitioner. The 
report shall include a list of those persons and organization notified of the meeting detailing the 
method and date of contact’ the date, time, and location of the meeting; a roster of persons in 
attendance, a summary of issues discussed, and a description of any changes to the petition as a 
result of the meeting. In the event the petitioner has not held at least one meeting, the petitioner 
shall file a report documenting efforts that were made and the reasons such a meeting was not held.  

 

NA

Page 8 of 32



APPR
O

XIM
ATE LO

C
ATIO

N
O

F 12  LO
T SPLIT

G
AR

R
ISO

N
BR

AN
C

H
STR

EAM

C
LU

BH
O

U
SE

PO
O

L

PR
O

PER
TY LIN

E (TYP.)

GILL BRANCH ROAD

M
O

N
TIC

ELLO
 R

O
AD

WEST ROLLING ACRES RD

EAST ROLLING ACRES RD

BUILDING A

24 UNITS

3 STORIES

BU
ILD

IN
G

 A
24 U

N
ITS

3 STO
R

IES

G
AR

R
ISO

N
BR

AN
C

H
STR

EAM

O
W

N
ER

: FO
U

N
TAIN

 STAR
PR

O
PER

TIES LLC
R

ESID
EN

TIAL :R
-3

PIN
: 973350972000000

O
W

N
ER

: SH
AR

O
N

 L YO
PP,

ED
W

AR
D

 R
 YO

PP
U

SE: R
ESID

EN
TIAL

ZO
N

IN
G

: R
-3

PIN
: 0973350893100000

O
W

N
ER

: M
AR

TIN
 BLAN

K
U

SE: R
ESID

EN
TIAL

ZO
N

IN
G

: R
-3

PIN
: 973351573400000

O
W

N
ER

: LAR
S E JO

H
N

SO
N

 ,
EILEEN

 PATR
IC

IA R
IEH

M
AN

U
SE: R

ESID
EN

TIAL
ZO

N
IN

G
: R

-3
PIN

: 973350955700000

O
W

N
ER

: JAYM
E M

AIER
,

C
O

LE M
AIER

U
SE: R

ESID
EN

TIAL
ZO

N
IN

G
: R

-3
PIN

: 973360042500000

O
W

N
ER

: PATR
IC

IA L
BR

U
M

BAU
G

H
U

SE: R
ESID

EN
TIAL

ZO
N

IN
G

: R
-3

PIN
: 973360039300000

O
W

N
ER

: A FR
EN

C
H

M
ER

ID
ETH

U
SE: R

ESID
EN

TIAL
ZO

N
IN

G
: R

-3
PIN

: 973360018700000

O
W

N
ER

: O
R

VA LEE
R

O
BER

TS ET AL
U

SE: U
N

KN
O

W
N

ZO
N

IN
G

: EM
P

PIN
: 0973360490900000BUILDING E

36 UNITS

3 STORIES

BUILDING E

36 UNITS

3 STORIES

BUILDING E

36 UNITS

3 STORIES

©

SUBMISSION TO WEAVERVILLE PLANNING0 2022-10-17 LDS

MONTICELLO FAMILY
PREPARED FOR

LDG MULTIFAMILY, LLC SITE PLAN1

SITE LEG
EN

D

SITE D
ATA TABLE

N
O

R
TH

N
O

TES
1.

PAR
C

EL D
ATA TAKEN

 FR
O

M
 N

C
 O

N
EM

AP O
N

 1-12-2022.
2.

EN
VIR

O
N

M
EN

TAL FEATU
R

ES AR
E TAKEN

 FR
O

M
 BU

N
C

O
M

BE C
O

U
N

TY G
IS.

3.
TELEC

O
M

 AN
D

 ELEC
TR

IC
 TO

 BE IN
STALLED

 AS PAR
T O

F TH
E D

EVELO
PM

EN
T.

4.
O

FF-SITE G
R

AVITY SEW
ER

 M
AIN

 EXTEN
SIO

N
 TO

 C
O

N
N

EC
T TO

 M
H

-63-110147.

Page 9 of 32



Town of Weaverville, North Carolina
Preliminary Staff Report: 
171 Monticello Road Annexation, 
Initial Zoning, Conditional District

Prepared November 2022
Updated December 2022

Sources: Town of Weaverville Code of Ordinances; Comprehensive Land Use Plan; Town of Weaverville Fact 
Sheet

Page 1 of 3

Zoning Analysis

Town Council is set to consider a voluntary annexation of contiguous parcels adjacent to 
Monticello Road. The parcel consists of 10.68 acres and conditional zoning is being applied for 
in order to house the desired development. 156 units is being proposed at a density of 14.6
units per acre. The proposed density is north of what any standard district will accommodate 
creating the need for the conditional zoning request. Parking is also shown at less than two 
spaces per unit which would be noncompliant with existing code. Also, a buffer of 20 feet 
would normally be required for multifamily residential development where abutting a 
residential district. An increased buffer of 35 feet is shown on the plan. Three of the building 
are now shown as containing 36 units which would need to be incorporated into the 
conditional district as no more than 24 units would otherwise be permissible.  

As per municipal ordinance, the conditional district application and supporting documents 
where viewed by Town Council for an initial consideration on Monday, November 21. Town 
Council offered the following conditions for consideration by the Planning Board and applicant.

Based on its initial consideration of the project, the Town Council notes the following as 
matters for specific review and consideration by the owner/developer and the Planning Board: 

a. Installation of safe pedestrian access to the Northridge Commons shopping 
center through the use of sidewalks and crosswalks is critical for this project;

b. Buffering between neighboring properties should be maximized with a 
preference for some of the buffering to be undisturbed vegetation;

c. Redesign of the project to push development to the middle of the property or to 
the side of the property that is currently undeveloped should be considered;

d. Location of the pool appears to be too close to the neighboring property;
e. Density was raised as a concern by at least one Councilmember;
f. Parking spaces being below what Town Code would require is not a concern.

Page 10 of 32



Town of Weaverville, North Carolina
Preliminary Staff Report: 
171 Monticello Road Annexation, 
Initial Zoning, Conditional District

Prepared November 2022
Updated December 2022

Sources: Town of Weaverville Code of Ordinances; Comprehensive Land Use Plan; Town of Weaverville Fact 
Sheet

Page 2 of 3

Comprehensive Land Use Plan Compliance

When considering compliance with the Town’s Comprehensive Land Use Plan (CLUP), often the 
analysis begins with a consultation of the future land use map. Here it is found that the future 
land use map has identified the area in question for mixed use development. Mixed use as 
identified on the future land use map is defined as follows:

“Areas as shown on the future land use map are where the town has experienced a variety of 
development pressures ranging from high density single family residential development and
multifamily residential development to local retail establishments and restaurants. These areas 
include Monticello Road, North Buncombe School Road and Reems Creek Road. There is a belief 
that these particular developments can coexist in such environments and that they will continue 
to increase in these areas due to the transportation and utility infrastructure present.” 

The conditional zoning being applied for is specifically to accomodate multifamily residential 
development. 

Additionally, the stated goal within the CLUP of “consider ways to increase housing 
affordability” should be taken into account. The conditional district being applied for is also 
specifically for an affordable housing development. 

Given the aforementioned variables, it is the opinion of staff that the voluntary annexation and 
desired conditional zoning is not inconsistent with the Town’s CLUP.

Reasonableness of the Proposed Zoning

When considering the reasonableness of the proposed zoning, Town Council and the Planning 
Board are provided with the following statutorily prescribed guidance.

Sec. 20-1505. Planning board review and comment.

Page 11 of 32



Town of Weaverville, North Carolina
Preliminary Staff Report: 
171 Monticello Road Annexation, 
Initial Zoning, Conditional District

Prepared November 2022
Updated December 2022

Sources: Town of Weaverville Code of Ordinances; Comprehensive Land Use Plan; Town of Weaverville Fact 
Sheet

Page 3 of 3

(d) Reasonableness statement for rezonings. When conducting its review of proposed zoning 
map amendments, the planning board shall, as part of its plan consistency statement or 
separately, provide a statement analyzing the reasonableness of the proposed rezoning. Such 
analysis should consider, among other factors: (i) the size, physical conditions, and other 
attributes of the area proposed to be rezoned; (ii) the benefits and detriments to the 
landowners, the neighbors, and the surrounding community; (iii) the relationship between the 
current actual and permissible development on the tract and adjoining areas and the 
development that would be permissible under the proposed amendment; (iv) why the action 
taken is in the public interest; and (v) any changed conditions warranting the amendment. If the 
zoning map amendment qualifies as a large scale rezoning the analysis of reasonableness may 
address the overall rezoning. 

Other Considerations

The 2020 American Community survey provided the Town with a household size of 2.14 persons per 
household. This figure applied to the proposed 168 units suggests that this project will grow the 
population of the Town by approximately 359 people should Town Council annex the property and grant 
the desired conditional district. 

Should Town Council annex the property, said annexation would be a contiguous annexation. The 
properties are eligible for annexation into the corporate limits of the town as evidenced by the 
certificate of sufficiency. 

Page 12 of 32



Page 13 of 32



Page 14 of 32



Page 15 of 32



Page 16 of 32



Page 17 of 32



12/28/22, 4:14 PM Buncombe County, NC Code of Ordinances

about:blank 1/13

���

���

���

���

���

���

���

�	


��	������	���������������������������������	

��������� !�������"���#��!�"�"��������"����#�����������!������������#��##������������$��%#����

!��"��&���������##����"��"���������������&�"�#���&�������#��'������������������������%���������

�!���&!��!������#��"��#��##��������$!��!��������#��'������������������&�"����&�������'����"��#

!��"��&�����"	�(�"������������"����"������������������������)������"�"*��!�"�����$��&��!�����"�����&

�#��������&"���������������������"�#��������"����"��������"�������������"����#������"	

	��
����
�����+����������"����"��������������!�"�"���������"�,


����""#����������"�������!��������������#��������������#��!�������"�������"�$�����������

��������������##������������"�����!��������������#�������������#��!�������"�������"�$������

������������������$��%#���������"	�-�����������"��#�����!�"���.������������������.��"������

���������������"�������������/�����"������������0

1��"����������������$���������"�$���&��"�"���"0

�������������������������������$!��!������"���"�������������*������!��"�����#�"���

�����"��������"������������������!����*�/�����������#���*��"����"���������&��!������

����������*�#������������"�������$��!�������"������������������	�2�����"������������������*�#��

�!�������"�"��#��!�"�"������*��"����������������������������$!��!��"���"�&�������"���

�����"����*���������*�����������������-�+3 	� !�����&�!��#������"������������"����"����������

��$���"��!����'����������������"�����	� !��1����(��&��4��%$���"!��������������"��������

����"������������������	

����
���������������

���������������������� !��������������"������.��������"�#��������"����������"�"��"����&��"

�!�������"������)�������"��������������!����������#��!����"���������$!��!�����"��������	�+��"���

�����'������!�����������������!����"���������$!��!��!���������������"�����������"�"!�$����

"����������/�������!�������"�����#�"�"����������������������������"����5����!�������"�����#

������������������"	�6#��!������������������������������������"����������!���������"�����*

�!����������#�����$������$�����&�����"���"�����"���������������������#������!����������#��!�

��������������������������������!����"������"����������"�����*�������"���!�����������������

�����������!����������#��$�����&�����"�����$���������!���������������������������

�����������	�+��"�����������������"����������������������#��!�������$������"����������/�*

��������&�����!��#����$��&����������"�������������������	�-�����������"�����������.��"������

���������������"�������������/�����"�������������������������������"�����"����$��!����

���������������������������������!����!����!���&!�"��������!�����������!����.��������"

"���#���!�����!�"�"��"������������!������������������������������������"���������	

�����������������������
�����������������
���+��"�����������������"������������

���������#��!�������$������"����������/�*���������&�����!��#����$��&������	�6����������

���������������"�������"���*������"���"��������������#����������"���$���#��!���!���
Page 18 of 32



12/28/22, 4:14 PM Buncombe County, NC Code of Ordinances

about:blank 2/13
Page 19 of 32



1  

The Town of 

Weaverville 
N O R T H C A R O L I N A 

January ___, 2023 

Re: LDG Multifamily, LLC 
Conditional District Zoning Application for 171 Monticello Road 
Property Bearing Parcel Identification Number 9733-60-3503 
Statement of Consistency/Reasonableness and Recommendation 

 
Dear Mayor Patrick Fitzsimmons and Weaverville Town Council – 

On December 6, 2022, and January 3, 2023, pursuant to Section 20-3203 of the Town’s Code of 
Ordinances, the Planning Board reviewed the application for a Conditional District that was submitted 
to the Town by LDG Multifamily, LLC, (“LDG”) on October 18, 2022. 

It is noted that the site plan that this recommendation is based on was revised to lessen the impact of 
the project on the neighboring community in order and to accommodate the comments received from 
Town Council, the Planning Board, and from the community during a community meeting held 
pursuant to Code Sec. 20-3203(e)(2) on November 20, 2022.  

This project currently proposes the construction of an affordable housing multifamily project 
consisting of 156 apartment units (reduced from 168 units) within 5 residential buildings (reduced 
from 7 residential buildings) and amenities as described herein, on approximately 10.68 acres.  

The Planning Board of the Town of Weaverville reviewed the project and submits a favorable 
recommendation along with its statement finding the reasonableness of the project and consistency 
with the Comprehensive Land Use Plan in that the multifamily development is consistent with the 
future land use map and addresses the need for affordable housing in the area, both as 
contemplated by the Comprehensive Land Use Plan. With the conditions recommended below, it is 
the opinion of the Planning Board that the project can co-exist with the existing single-family homes 
in the area and is, therefore, reasonable in light of the Town’s Comprehensive Land Use Plan and 
other land use policies. 

After careful review of this application and the materials submitted, and in a majority/unanimous 
vote, the Planning Board recommends the approval of the application for a Conditional District Zoning 
for the project as reflected on the attached plans and elevations, subject to the following proposed 
conditions: 

a. The project shall be constructed in substantial compliance with the Conditional District Site 
Plan received 16 December 2022, and attached hereto. 

Page 20 of 32



2  

b. At least 50% of the total units in the Project (78 units) shall be Affordable Housing (as 
defined in the Buncombe County Code for Community Oriented Development, Buncombe 
Code sec. 78-650).  Said units shall be maintained as affordable for a period of 15 years.  In 
order to monitor compliance with this condition, LDG shall, upon request of the Town, 
provide the Town with such documentation regarding affordability of units in the Project 
as has been provided to the federal or State government in order to maintain LDG’s 
eligibility for assistance and/or tax credits, provided that such information shall not reveal 
any information regarding the income of particular residents or other personal or private 
information.  

c. The maximum allowed density on the property is 14.61 units per acre, which reflects a 
“density bonus” for the Affordable Housing aspect of this project. If the Project fails to 
achieve or fails to maintain the required Affordable Housing within the 15-year period, 
then the maximum density on the property will revert to 12 units per acre, as allowed by 
R-12 zoning.  

d. The number of units allowed in each building shall be as shown on the approved Site Plan, 
and may exceed 24 units per building. 

e. Related to pedestrian safety, the following shall be installed: 

i. an internal sidewalk network; and 

ii. a sidewalk along the entire length of the property which abuts Monticello Road.  

In addition, LDG will participate financially in any or all of the following improvements, as 
planned or authorized by NCDOT, provided that construction is started within 5 years from 
the date of approval of this Ordinance: 

iii. a sidewalk along Monticello Road from the easternmost corner of the property to 
at least the intersection of Monticello Road and Northcrest Road; 

iv. pedestrian crossing to allow pedestrians to cross Monticello Road to access either 
the intersection of Monticello Road and Northcrest Road or the sidewalk leading to 
such intersection;  

v. a sidewalk along Northcrest Road to connect into the existing sidewalk network of 
the Northridge Commons Shopping Center found near the intersection of 
Northcrest Road and Northridge Commons Parkway. 

In satisfaction of sub-paragraphs iii, iv, and v of this condition, LDG will place $TBD in 
escrow with the Town of Weaverville and execute an escrow agreement which shall 
provide that such funds be applied to the cost of the design, construction, and installation 
of these pedestrian-related improvements if constructed within 5 years from the date of 
the approval of this Ordinance. Further, LDG will negotiate in good faith with the owners 
of Northcrest Commons and others for the easements or right of way for the sidewalks 
and other pedestrian facilities on that property.  Nothing herein will prohibit LDG from 

Page 21 of 32



3  

agreeing to further participation in these improvements when said improvements have 
been designed and cost estimates have been provided.   

f. All traffic improvements required or recommended by NCDOT in the traffic study must be 
constructed and/or installed, to the extent that said improvements can be installed and/or 
constructed on property owned or controlled by LDG or NCDOT. 

g. All driveways/streets within the project shall be private. Said private driveways/streets 
shall be constructed to standards set forth in the North Carolina Department of 
Transportation subdivision road minimum construction standards, as required by 
Weaverville Code Sec. 24-83.  

h. The number of off-street parking spaces provided shall be determined by the developer, 
but shall be adequate to accommodate the multifamily residential use of the property, 
with the understanding that parking on or along Monticello Road is expressly prohibited. 

i. Construction related vehicles must be parked on the property and not on the public 
streets or the shoulders of those public streets. All dirt, mud, construction materials, or 
other debris deposited on the public streets as a result of construction activities must be 
removed by the contractor or owner on a daily basis, pursuant to Code Section 22-48. 

j. All outdoor lighting on the property shall comply with the outdoor lighting provisions of 
Code Section 20-3324.  A plan shall be submitted and approved as required by Sec. 20-
3603. 

k. A minimum 35-foot landscape buffer must be maintained or installed along the western 
boundary of the property as shown on the approved Site Plan.  Twenty feet of the 35-foot 
landscaped buffer must be undisturbed with existing trees and shrubbery maintained. 
Maintenance of the undisturbed area can include the removal of trees that are deemed 
dangerous, but must be replaced. Landscaping that is installed must comply with the list of 
recommended species that is maintained by the Town’s Planning Department. A 
landscaping plan meeting the requirements of Town Code Sec 20-3403 must be submitted 
and approved in conjunction with a zoning permit application.  If any revisions to the 
landscaping are required in order to comply with environmental ordinances administered 
by Buncombe County, approval of such revisions shall not be unreasonably withheld by the 
Town.  Any landscaping required by the plan shall be maintained in accordance with Sec. 
20-3404(e).  

l. Compliance with Buncombe County sedimentation and erosion control standards and with 
Buncombe County’s stormwater regulations is required. All permitting and inspections on 
these issues will by conducted through Buncombe County. 

m. Onsite amenities shall be provided for the residents of the project as shown on the 
approved Site Plan. At a minimum, such amenities shall include or be substantially similar 
to the following: swimming pool, community building with multipurpose room and 
resident computer center, onsite leasing office, bicycle storage, covered picnic area with 

Page 22 of 32



4  

tables and grilling area, furnished fitness center/exercise room, commercial grade 
playground equipment, and toddler play lot.  

n. A zoning permit required by Sec. 20-3110 shall be applied for within one year from the 
effective date of the Conditional District Ordinance. Upon request of the owner/developer, 
Town Council may, in its sole discretion, grant such extension as Town Council deems 
appropriate under the circumstances.  Progress on the construction of the Project and the 
establishment of vested rights shall thereafter be governed by NCGS 160D-108.    

o. Code Section 20-3203 shall continue to govern the project including, but not limited, to 
those provisions regarding issuance of zoning permits, modifications (in accordance with 
Code Section 20-1303), appeals, and final plat approval.  

p. The Conditional Zoning Ordinance shall be recorded in the Buncombe County Register of 
Deeds, and shall be binding on the successors and assigns of LDG.   

Representatives of LDG Multifamily, LLC, were present at the Planning Board meeting on December 6, 
2022, and January 3, 2023, to answer the Board’s questions and have indicated their agreement to the 
conditions contained in this recommendation. 

Please let me know if you need anything further from the Board on this matter. 

Sincerely, 

 
 

Bob Pace 
Planning Board Chairman 

 
cc: James Eller, Town Planner 

Selena Coffey, Town Manager 
Jennifer Jackson, Town Attorney 
Bob Oast, Attorney for LDG 
Landon Cox, LDG  

Page 23 of 32



TOWN OF WEAVERVILLE

PLANNING BOARD AGENDA ITEM

Date of Meeting: Tuesday, January 3, 2022

Subject: Zoning Map Amendment Application for 480 Reems Creek 
Road and Adjacent Parcels

Presenter: Planning Director, Town Attorney

Attachments: Zoning Map Amendment Application, Staff Report

Description:

Staff is in possession of a zoning map amendment application for 480 Reems Creek Road 
and two other adjacent tracts totaling 17.4 acres. An initial zoning of R-3 is desired upon 
annexation into the corporate limits of the town. 

Town Council has referred the zoning request to the Planning Board for the full review 
process as required by N.C.G.S. Chapter 160D. The Planning Board shall now review and 
offer comment on the proposal as per Sec. 20-1505.

Sec. 20-1505. Planning board review and comment.

(c) Plan consistency. When conducting a review of proposed zoning text or map amendments pursuant to G.S. 
160D-604 and this section, the planning board shall advise and comment on whether the proposed action is 
consistent with any comprehensive plan that has been adopted and any other officially adopted plan that is 
applicable. The planning board shall provide a written recommendation to the governing board that 
addresses plan consistency and other matters as deemed appropriate by the planning board, but a comment 
by the planning board that a proposed amendment is inconsistent with the comprehensive plan shall not 
preclude consideration or approval of the proposed amendment by the governing board. If a zoning map 
amendment qualifies as a "large-scale rezoning" under G.S. 160D-602(b), the planning board statement 
describing plan consistency may address the overall rezoning and describe how the analysis and policies in 
the relevant adopted plans were considered in the recommendation made. 

(d) Reasonableness statement for rezonings. When conducting its review of proposed zoning map amendments, 
the planning board shall, as part of its plan consistency statement or separately, provide a statement 
analyzing the reasonableness of the proposed rezoning. Such analysis should consider, among other factors: 
(i) the size, physical conditions, and other attributes of the area proposed to be rezoned; (ii) the benefits and 
detriments to the landowners, the neighbors, and the surrounding community; (iii) the relationship between 
the current actual and permissible development on the tract and adjoining areas and the development that 
would be permissible under the proposed amendment; (iv) why the action taken is in the public interest; and 
(v) any changed conditions warranting the amendment. If the zoning map amendment qualifies as a large 
scale rezoning the analysis of reasonableness may address the overall rezoning. 

Page 24 of 32



Action Requested:

The Board is being asked to consider the conditional district application and offer a 
recommendation to Town Council on the proposal’s consistency with the comprehensive 
land use plan and reasonableness of the proposed zoning amendment. 

Page 25 of 32



Page 26 of 32



Page 27 of 32



Buncombe County

December 6, 2022

 
 

0 0.075 0.150.0375 mi

1:4,514

Page 28 of 32



Page 29 of 32



Page 30 of 32



Town of Weaverville, North Carolina
Preliminary Staff Report: 
Reems Creek Annexation
Initial Zoning Request of R-3

Prepared December, 2022

Sources: Town of Weaverville Code of Ordinances; Comprehensive Land Use Plan; Town of Weaverville Fact 
Sheet

Page 1 of 2

Zoning Analysis

Town Council is set to consider a voluntary annexation of contiguous parcels adjacent to Reems 
Creek Road. The parcels consist of 17.4 acres as shown on the voluntary annexation petition 
and zoning map amendment application and an initial zoning of R-3 is desired. With the acreage 
present and the density permitted within the desired zoning district the Town may expect 
approximately 139 dwelling units in a single family or multifamily configuration under these 
conditions.

Comprehensive Land Use Plan Compliance

When considering compliance with the Town’s Comprehensive Land Use Plan (CLUP), often the 
analysis begins with a consultation of the future land use map. This future land use map is 
adopted as a part of the CLUP to provide primary guidance for the categories of uses expected 
within the geographic areas of the Town and along Town borders. Here it is found that the 
properties in question fall in a transition area between the land use categories of mixed use and 
residential. These transition areas are addressed within the CLUP as follows.

“Gaps have been intentionally provided between areas on the future land use map as there is a 
need for flexibility to allow for the uncertainty of the future. Defined areas do not necessarily 
follow property boundaries. The boundaries and gaps should be viewed as flexible rather than 
fixed lines and the final decisions on land use types in these transitional areas should be left to 
the discretion and good judgement of the appointed and elected officials that are charged with 
establishing development policy and regulations in the Town.”

Mixed use as identified on the future land use map is defined as follows:

“Areas as shown on the future land use map are where the town has experienced a variety of 
development pressures ranging from high density single family residential development and 
multifamily residential development to local retail establishments and restaurants. These areas 
include Monticello Road, North Buncombe School Road and Reems Creek Road. There is a belief 
that these particular developments can coexist in such environments and that they will continue 
to increase in these areas due to the transportation and utility infrastructure present.”

Page 31 of 32



Town of Weaverville, North Carolina
Preliminary Staff Report: 
Reems Creek Annexation
Initial Zoning Request of R-3

Prepared December, 2022

Sources: Town of Weaverville Code of Ordinances; Comprehensive Land Use Plan; Town of Weaverville Fact 
Sheet

Page 2 of 2

Residential use as defined on the future land use map is defined as follows:

“Surrounding the downtown core are primarily residential neighborhoods that contain historic 
bungalows and arts and crafts style homes. Scattered within these areas are several historic 
churches and new residential construction. Other residential areas include the Reems Creek Golf 
Course, Reems Creek Villages, Hamburg Mountain, Woodland Hills and more dense residential 
developments such as Creekside Village, Hamburg Crossing and Kyfields. Future residential 
areas are defined on the future land use map as areas that support further residential 
construction and the character of these areas can be respected by observing the dimensional 
standards of the zoning district in which they are located.”

The R-3 zoning district which is being requested will accommodate both high density single 
family residential development and multifamily residential development at a density of eight 
units per acre.

Given the aforementioned variables, it is the opinion of staff that the initial zoning of R-3 upon 
annexation is not inconsistent with the Town’s CLUP.

Other Considerations

The 2020 American Community survey provided the Town with a household size of 2.14 persons per 
household. This figure applied to the theoretical 139 units suggests that this project will grow the 
population of the Town by approximately 297 people should Town Council annex the property and grant 
the desired R-3 Zoning District.

Should Town Council annex the property, said annexation would be a contiguous annexation. The 
properties are eligible for annexation into the corporate limits of the town as evidenced by the 
certificate of sufficiency. 

Page 32 of 32


